# NORTHERN BOYS' BASKETBALL BOOSTER CLUB

## **BYLAWS**

### Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club Bylaws

#### ARTICLE I - NAME

This organization shall be known as the Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club.

#### ARTICLE II – MISSION

The purpose of the Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club is to promote and support the Northern Boys Basketball program, but not to assume financial obligations which generally are accepted to be the responsibility of the school district. The specific objectives of the Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club are to:

- \* Raise funds to help support Basketball Teams
- Honor and support the Basketball Coaches and Teams
- ❖ Promote public enthusiasm and interest in the Northern Boys Basketball Program

#### ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP & MEETINGS

Membership will be open to all participants' (grades 6-12) parents, as well as any other friends of the Northern Boys Basketball Program. Members of the school district's administration, including its Board of Directors, and boys basketball coaching staff may only serve *ex officio*, i.e. as non-voting members.

Regularly scheduled meetings shall be conducted once a month. Meeting dates shall be established a year in advance, at the annual meeting held to elect officers.

#### ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS

The Club's operations will be overseen by four officers: President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. These officers shall be elected to one-year terms by a majority vote at the annual March meeting. In the event less than four members volunteer to serve as officers, the Vice President position will be the first to be vacated, followed by the Secretary position. Under no circumstances shall the same individual hold the dual roles of President and Treasurer.

In the event an officers resigns, the President has the authority to appoint a replacement to complete the term. In the event the President resigns, the Vice President shall assume the presidency; if the Vice President's position is vacant, a special election shall be held at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

#### ARTICLE V – DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS

PRESIDENT – It shall be the duty of the President to preside over all meetings; to appoint the chairman and members of the various committees; and to perform all other duties usually pertaining to said office.

VICE PRESIDENT – The Vice President shall serve in the absentee of the President. In the event of disability of President, the Vice President shall assume the duties of the President.

SECRETARY – It shall be the duty of the Secretary to attend; keep minutes; and record all votes of the meetings. The Secretary shall convey all official records to successor upon the expiration of term.

TREASURER – The treasurer shall have the custody of the Booster Club funds and shall keep a full and accurate account of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the club and should deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the club.

#### ARTICLE VI – FISCAL ORGANIZATION

The Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club is organized as a fund raising organization for the support of the Northern boys basketball program. As such, its purpose is exclusively for charitable, educational, and recreational purposes, and the club shall abide by all provisions under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (or the corresponding section of any future Federal tax code).

Upon dissolution of this Club, assets shall be distributed to the Northern York School District as per Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (or corresponding section of any future Federal tax code).

#### ARTICLE VII - FISCAL POLICY

The Officers shall decide all matters pertaining to finances of the Club and shall place all income in the organization's treasuries, directing the expenditures of same to fulfill their purposes. All monies raised or held under the auspices of the Northern Boys Basketball Booster Club will be deposited in the Officer's Treasuries, by the Treasurer and subject to review by the President and all voting members.

#### ARTICLE VIII - SUB COMMITTEES

The President, with majority support from the membership, is authorized to create standing and ad-hoc sub-committees. These committees shall be filled by volunteers.

#### ARTICLE IX – QUORUM

A simple majority of existing Officers shall constitute a quorum. A simple majority of Committee members shall constitute a quorum for any Committee meeting. A two-thirds vote of the Officers and voting members shall govern, except when otherwise provided for in the By-Laws.

#### ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS

These by-laws, or any section thereof, may be amended or repealed by an affirmative vote of two-thirds members of the Officers and voting members voting at any stipulated regularly called meeting provided that written notice of such proposed changes over the signature of the Secretary shall be distributed to each officer and voting member at least ten (10) days prior to the meetings at which such proposed changes shall be submitted to vote.